
                                   URBANA CITY COUNCIL 

          REGULAR SESSION MINUTES – JANUARY 28, 2014 
Council President Marty Hess called the Urbana City Council Regular Session Meeting 

of Tuesday, January 28, 2014, to order at 7:02PM in Court Chambers / The Municipal 

Building. 

All Council Members were present with the exception of Councilman Dwight Paul. 

City Staff in Attendance – Mayor Bill Bean; Mr. Kerry Brugger, Director of 

Administration; Ms. Rhonda Ward, Finance Director; Mr. Doug Crabill, Assistant to the 

Director of Administration; Police Chief Matt Lingrell; City Law Director Breanne 

Parcels; and Mr. Colin Stein 

Roll Call and Pledge of Allegiance 

Brief Presentation 

Mr. Todd Tracey provided the 2013 Summary of the Urbana Youth Sports. 

Mr. Tracey stated: 

“2013—our program included baseball, softball, Miracle Youth League (which is a 

softball league for children with disabilities), swim team, soccer, football, football 

cheerleading. Baseball (had 345 participants), Softball (130), Miracle Youth League (33),  

Swim Team (68), Soccer (353), Football, (44), Cheerleading (27)—that’s a total of 1,000 

children participating.” 

He announced 93 total teams involved in UYS, noting ‘probably 93 businesses behind 

those teams supporting them through sponsorship.’ 

“We’d like to thank all of them,” said Mr. Tracey, also citing 39 non-Urbana teams that 

came into town to participate. 

He said 368 volunteers (donating ‘somewhere between 10 & 60 hours per year’) were in 

all of the programs combined. Mr. Tracey expressed appreciation to all of the volunteers. 

He reviewed finances, and pointed to improvements to the facilities  - Urbana Youth 

Sports Building, additional electric / outside security lights & cameras, restrooms (toilet 

paper/ restroom cleaning), purchase of soccer nets / zip ties, small refrigerator, folding 

tables, internet service to the Youth Sports Building, and liability insurance. 

Mr. Tracey mentioned the first Youth Sports Festival at the Park, and cited a figure of 

$8,300 ‘that put a new fountain in the pond at the Park,’ and helped with installation of 

new sand volleyball courts. 

Over $33,000 was spent at locally owned businesses for (primarily) uniforms and 

trophies. Two local photographers serviced all of the programs. He spoke to equipment 

and concessions. Mr. Tracey noted the addition of online sign-ups to allow residents to 

sign up for programs ‘in the privacy of their homes.’ 

Announced baseball and softball sign-ups beginning at the end of February, and referred 

to the following sites:  www.urbanayouthsports.com, or www.urbanayouthsports.org. 

Mr. Tracey spoke of the new State law that was introduced, ‘The Concussion Law,’ 

noting that coaches required training regarding that law. 

He encouraged anyone who would like to volunteer, to join in. 

Mr. Tracey said that Mr. Chris Stokes would address Council in the next few weeks to 

provide a summary of the Summer Youth Sports Festival. He thanked numerous 

individuals/groups who have provided support of the program (list not provided). 

http://www.urbanayouthsports.com/
http://www.urbanayouthsports.org/


Mr. Eugene Fields said, “I’d just like to say thank you for all you do out there—I 

probably speak for all Council—if there’s anything we can do to help you, come and see 

us!” 

“Great job! Thank you!” said Mr. Al Evans. 

“The same!” Mrs. Virginia Smith said. 

“Sounds like a great job!” said Mr. Pat Thackery. 

“Thank you!” said Mr. Tony Pena. 

Mr. Doug Hoffman stated, “I would just reiterate that (like you said) talking about 

volunteers. I know a lot of people spend a lot of time doing more (maybe) than they 

should, but you know…if more volunteers come out, it makes it easier on everyone. If  

you’re a parent of a child—get involved—it’s not that difficult. I’m sure if you get with 

Todd, he can walk you through what’s expected. It’s a lot of fun! Thank you, Todd—I 

appreciate it!” 

“Thank you, Todd—we appreciate all you do,” Council President Hess added. 

Approval of Minutes 

Mr. Fields moved to approve the (2) City of Urbana Public Hearing Minutes and UCC 

Regular Session Minutes (January 14, 2014); Mr. Thackery seconded. Motion carried 

without objection. 

Executive Session 

Mr. Fields moved to adjourn to a brief EXECUTIVE SESSION at 7:12PM for Council to 

discuss ‘Personnel,’ Mrs. Smith seconded. 

Roll call vote to approve: Mr. Pena, yes; Mr. Hoffman, yes; Mr. Fields, yes; Mr. Evans, 

yes; Mrs. Smith, yes; Mr. Thackery, yes   (6-0) 

*This Executive Session was for Council only, and was called by Law Director Breanne 

Parcels. The Council Clerk was not present in the Executive Session. 

Following the brief session (approximately 7 minutes), Mr. Thackery moved to resume to 

the UCC Regular Session Meeting; Mr. Pena seconded. All were in favor of reconvening. 

Communications 

Mrs. Smith moved to place the LUC Regional Planning Commission Executive 

Committee Meeting Minutes (January 9, 2014) on file; Mr. Evans seconded. Motion 

carried without objection. 

Mr. Thackery moved to place the Communication to Council from the Urbana City 

Council Clerk (January 17, 2014) on file; Mr. Hoffman seconded. 

Discussion – 

Mr. Evans was confused about which correspondence was being placed on file. 

Council President Hess clarified this was the letter of resignation from the Clerk. The 

Clerk said it was in the Council packet on the page behind the LUC communication. 

“Our Clerk is resigning to pursue other interests…and we’ll be searching for a new 

Clerk,” Council President Hess stated. “It has been posted on the website…and The 

Urbana Daily Citizen…and you can apply electronically.” 

The letter of resignation was not read, and there was no motion made to accept or reject 

the resignation itself. 

Administrative Reports – Board of Control 

1. 

Mr. Evans moved to authorize the Director of Administration to enter into a renewal base 

contract with Susan Tehan as the Oakdale Cemetery Coordinator for the amount of 



$13,710 for a 12 month period beginning January 1, 2014 (This is in the 2014 Budget, 

and was reviewed by the Law Director); Mr. Fields seconded. Motion carried without 

objection. 

Discussion – 

Mr. Kerry Brugger stated: 

“As we discussed in the Work Session—this is an opportunity for us to continue our 

services with Susan Tehan—if you recall, it was (I think) August 2010 is when the City 

first began the agreement with her being the Cemetery Coordinator…and it’s been fairly 

successful over the last couple 3 years so…this is the year…what we would like to do is 

focus, and Susan has agreed that we’ll adjust her contract upward a little bit. She would 

like to focus on some specific projects that we’ve got to put our arms around…and make 

some (I guess) improvements in the grounds, and some of the facilities at the Cemetery 

there…so we’re asking for another year with Susan…we’ve adjusted her base a little bit,  

and will give her an opportunity to take some of those projects that we just don’t (for 

whatever reason) don’t seem to get to…and spend a little more time…and be a little more 

focused on some of those special projects at the Cemetery in 2014.” 

Mr. Hoffman said, “It’s in the Budget, and we discussed it…and I think she does a good 

job, and I wish her well.” 

“I think Susan does a great job…very professional…and I think she’s going to be a bright 

spot for us to continue to grow in that area!” Mr. Pena added. 

“I’m excited…we’re making improvements out there, and I think she’s the right person 

for that,” said Mr. Thackery. 

“Any volunteers that want to help out there—they can contact her, or Kerry Brugger,” 

added Mrs. Smith. “They’ll appreciate the help!” 

“Do we have a schedule of regular office hours?” asked Mr. Evans. 

Mr. Brugger replied, “There isn’t a schedule because of her…she has hours, and her 

number is listed with all of the local funeral directors…we have looked at…does it make 

sense to have some specific hours, given days…I think they tried that off and on over the 

years…and it’s really kind of hard to pinpoint that, because of the nature of that business. 

Part of our…one of the projects that we want to do first is our signage at the 

Cemetery…update that, and make sure it’s very clear what the hours are going to be…if 

they’re going to be set, or how to contact her to arrange to meet her at the Cemetery.” 

“Go forward with Susan!” Mr. Fields said. “Thank you!” 

 

2. 

Mr. Pena moved to authorize the Director of Administration to negotiate and execute a 

contract if needed to purchase up to an additional 300 tons of winter salt at the lowest 

available price not to exceed $23,000 (The current unit price contract approved by City 

Council at the August 13, 2013 meeting authorizing $49.21 per ton is complete. The 

Street Division upon completion of the unit price contract has 400 tons of salt on hand for 

the remainder of the 2014 year. The cost is charged to Street Division); Mr. Fields 

seconded. Motion carried without objection. 

Discussion – 

Mr. Colin Stein addressed Council: 

“Unfortunately it’s been a hard winter, so we’re trying to get our ducks in a row (so to 

speak), and make sure that we don’t run out. There’s been an ongoing problem with 



supply—it’s not really our problem—it’s on the supply end. We just need to have our 

stuff together, and hopefully we won’t need it…but the way things are going…it’s been a 

rough winter.” 

“What’s the approximate price per ton?” asked Mr. Thackery. 

Mr. Stein responded, “It’s between $49. and $50.”    

Mr. Hoffman said, “I would just look for a little reassurance that your guys don’t 

intentionally plow peoples’ vehicles in—I had to explain that to a few citizens that you 

do the best you can, based on the circumstances.” 

“No—we don’t—the fact of the matter is (and I’ve tried to explain this time and time 

again) they pay us to get that snow off the road! That snow goes to the curb—that’s what 

we do!” stated Mr. Stein. “You need to move your cars in a timely fashion, if you don’t 

want them plowed in. We don’t make the snow fall from the sky. My guys would just as 

soon sit at home (just like they are), and watch t.v….and watch the pretty snow outside, 

but they have to work. We appreciate the cooperation of most people…have been 

wonderful. I do get those calls too. Do we enjoy it? No—we don’t want to spend our days 

working either, so (you know) usually we’re plowing when we’re supposed to be at home 

with our families…then we have to go home, and dig ourselves out…so… we don’t do it 

on purpose, and generally the anger gets higher as the snow totals rise. Yeah, the phone 

calls I’ve gotten…a few…and no we don’t do it on purpose, but it’s the nature of the 

beast. They do it this way everywhere! Nobody’s different, so…we go from the center of 

the street to the curb…and we try to get all the way to the curb. That way when people 

are parking, they don’t park in the middle of the road…and constricting the road…” 

He stressed the importance of being able to get the trucks through, as well as emergency 

vehicles. 

Mr. Hoffman commented, “I will say I travel through neighboring cities, and you guys do 

as good a job or better…as the neighboring cities. I know people only see what they see 

here, but I think you guys do a good job. Keep up the good work!” 

“I appreciate that,” Mr. Stein replied. 

“I’ll second that,” Mr. Thackery added. “It was great this time. The Square was 

beautiful!” 

Mr. Stein said, “We try our best, and we don’t do it on purpose…but everybody needs to 

remember, the snow goes to the curb…no matter how big or small your street is…be 

patient, winter will end. I’m not sure when, but it will!”  

Mr. Pena said, “I just want to say thank you. It has been a tough winter, and the City of 

Urbana has been working really hard…and I just want to say thank you, and you’ve got 

to take the positive over the negative…and hopefully winter…can you tell us when 

winter’s going to be over though?” 

“No—it started early, and I feel like it’s a bit late…so…” Mr. Stein answered. 

“You’re doing a great job!” stated Mr. Thackery. 

Mr. Evans said, “If you get plowed in once—that might be an oops—but if you get 

plowed in twice, you might want to think about moving your car when it starts snowing!” 

“I think we’ve been lucky to have some mild winters, and people have forgotten what 

happens when we get big snows,” said Mr. Stein. “If you have 4-6 inches of snow…by 

the time you get it pushed across a 20 ft. road…there are quite a few more inches there. 

Our main focus is to get the main thorough-ways open so people can travel…” 



“I know the weather guys are not as accurate as we’d like them to be, but if they say it’s 

going to snow 3-5 inches…and you don’t want to be plowed in…you might want to 

move your car!” stated Mr. Evans. “It’s pretty simple!” 

“Correct,” said Mr. Stein. 

“Thank you for the great work—and Sunday, you’ll know—that’s when the groundhog 

comes!” Mr. Fields added. 

Mr. Stein instructed residents to dig their cars out, and move them as soon as possible. 

He said, “What will happen—if it snows again—we’ll pile more on top of that.” 

Council President Hess referred to ‘snow emergencies,’ and asked, “Would this help, 

Colin?” 

Mr. Brugger said,” We can look at that.” 

Mr. Stein said, “Cars should be moved in a timely fashion.” 

 

3. 

Mr. Evans moved to authorize the purchase of Anthem Group Health Insurance and 

related life, vision, and dental (SDC) insurances for $1,105,337 (The 2014 premium 

represents an 8.88% increase from 2013, and approximately 5% of the 8.88% are 

employer taxes related to the Affordable Care Act. The insurance expense is in the 2014 

Budget); Mr. Thackery seconded. Motion carried without objection. 

Discussion – 

Ms. Rhonda Ward addressed Council: 

“Stocksdale Insurance is our current broker for the City’s healthcare (vision, dental, 

various policies, and coverage). There is a Health Insurance Committee within the City, I 

would guess there’s probably 8-9 members on that healthcare committee—the Director of 

H.R. serves on it…I think the Chair came out of the Police Dept., if I remember 

correctly…but it works its way through a process, and this year employees were required 

to send in an online survey…so you complete a health assessment (well it’s not really a 

health assessment), but it’s an online questionnaire…it’s a survey of which then the 

broker can go out and quote with different insurance carriers once that information has 

been gathered…so it works its way through a process…” 

She noted the Health Insurance Committee reviews rates. She said there was a rate quote 

from Anthem, and then the insurance was also shopped to (2) other carriers. 

“As it mentions in the Board of Control action—in the end of…the increase is actually 

8.88% over what it was last year…we budgeted for a 10% increase, and of that 8.88% 

increase, 5% of it is made up of employer imposed taxes for the coming year that will be 

charged to the City through our health carrier…so that is a large portion of what makes 

up that increase this year,” Ms. Ward explained. 

Mr. Evans (to Mr. Greg Stocksdale, in the audience) asked, “I think you’d have to be 

living under a rock in this country not to have heard about The Affordable Care Act…so 

basically what you’re telling us here is that if not for The Affordable Care Act,  we would 

only have realized a 3.88 increase in our health insurance costs over last year?”  

Mr. Stocksdale answered, “…and I’d be doing back flips down the hallway!” 

“So you’re looking at 5% of $1.1mil which equates to (to do the math)…$50,000.?” 

asked Mr. Evans. 

“Yes—in The Affordable Care Act taxes (which there isn’t anything we can do about 

that),” Mr. Stocksdale said.  



“No—no, I understand that,” said Mr. Evans. 

Mr. Thackery asked, “Should we be calling it ‘Affordable?’” 

“Affordable is the wrong word that’s being used,” said Mr. Stocksdale. 

“We need to reenter something else, I think,” Mr. Thackery added. “Think of the small 

business guy…” 

Mr. Hoffman commented, “I think that the team did a pretty good job—we actually came 

in under what we allowed (or estimated for) in our Budget…so Lee, Kerry, and Bill…I 

don’t believe Rhonda was involved in that point, but they had the foresight to see this 

thing coming…so we actually came in under budget, and for that…I appreciate it!” 

Mr. Evans said, “With the coming in under budget (that’s great). How much…did the 

policies change, or did we have to…?” 

Mr. Stocksdale replied, “You have two plans…you have a dual option…the HSA account 

did not change at all…because of The Affordable Care Act, the PPO Plan (or the 

traditional, is what they call it)…did change a little bit, and what happened was…the out-

of-pocket basically went up $1,300., but because of The Affordable Care Act they also 

are now allowing the Dr. co-pays, the Emergency Room co-pays, and everything else 

now…will count towards out-of-pocket, which didn’t before…that’s part of the 

ObamaCare…” 

“I mean—did we—did the deductibles go up?” asked Mr. Evans. 

“No—no,” said Mr. Stocksdale. 

“Okay…and basically our employees haven’t lost any of their coverages?” Mr. Evans 

asked. 

“Some will actually realize a gain, because their co-pays now count towards their out-of-

pocket…there might be a case where…didn’t have any co-pays and just flat out went 

into…they might realize a little bit more, but for the most part ‘no’ as a whole,” answered 

Mr. Stocksdale. 

Mayor Bill Bean stated: 

“Marty—I would like to say something—I was with a company today…and they got 

their premium (and it’s not a large company, about 30 people)…their premium went up 

17%...and (once again) 5% of that was tax from The Affordable Health Care…so, you 

know, they would have been looking at a 12% increase…and this is just…it’s hitting the 

whole country! It’s unfortunate, but this is what we’ve got to look forward to now…but 

they were not happy with their increase…they were happy with their carrier…so I just 

wanted to say…this is what’s going on!” 

Mr. Stocksdale added, “I’ll make one other comment—when we started this process, the 

original renewal we got from Anthem was almost 22%.” 

Mr. Thackery expressed appreciation to Mr. Stocksdale for helping to get the totals down. 

 

4. 

Mr. Hoffman moved to authorize the Director of Administration to enter into contracts 

with (2) separate consultants for right of way acquisition services and/or review appraisal 

for the West Market St. Bridge Replacement in an amount not to exceed $10,000 between 

the (2) contracts (These consultants have been selected through a competitive selection 

process, and the cost to contract with these (2) firms is currently unknown. This cost is in 

the 2014 Budget for $10,000); Mr. Fields seconded.  Motion carried without objection. 

Discussion – 



Mr. Doug Crabill explained: 

“We went through a request for proposals…actually a letter of interest was what it was 

called, and we advertised it, had it on our website…and posted it on a website that ODOT 

has for consultants…and we got no responses…and what we found in digging into this 

more is that…it’s very specialized, and there’s a spreadsheet that exists that ODOT has 

that has 6 pages of consultants…but they kind of all have different specialties within that. 

Basically, for the West Market St. Bridge, we’re required (being a Federally funded 

project) there’s some acquisition required in order to do that project…and we had to 

select consultants to do the right-of-way, negotiation, and appraisals…and everything on 

behalf of the City, but independent of the City.  

So anyway—we went through this process, didn’t get any responses…that’s why you 

didn’t have anything prior to the meeting. From a timing standpoint, we still are required 

to have someone in place…and begin the right-of-way acquisition process by Feb. 

11…so we’re still asking for Council to essentially give us the authority to be able to 

continue to work to procure someone…or actually…(2) firms, an appraiser and a review 

appraiser…and basically to be able to move forward with the process, so that we can 

keep the project rolling…it’s the first time in the time I’ve been here that we never got a 

response. 

With the time frame we don’t really have time to go back through the formal process 

again, so we’re going to try to develop a process without advertising and all of that 

again…to where we can get some proposals in here, and review them…make a selection, 

and move forward. We’re asking Council to bless an amount not-to-exceed 

$10,000…between these (2) contracts, and allow us to contract with (2) firms for this 

work.” 

“If we don’t do it—will we lose the funding?” asked Mr. Fields. 

“I don’t think we would lose the funding, but we would want to keep the project on our 

schedule that we’ve developed with ODOT,” stated Mr. Crabill. “If we had gotten 

proposals, we would’ve been able to meet the schedule…we want to still be able to do 

that.” 

“Do you have any advice from ODOT?” asked Council President Hess. 

“Well…we’re just digging through the list…it’s very specialized so…and it’s a small 

scope of work…if it was a whole street, and multiple acquisitions…they probably…more 

consultants may have been interested, but we put together a proposal for a small scope of 

work…it wasn’t from a lack of effort,”said Mr. Crabill.  

Mr. Brugger interjected, “We’re talking about 2 very small pieces of land…and it isn’t a 

big scope, so a lot of companies probably don’t want to put resources out there for 

something that’s relatively small…again, we have to have 2…we have to have 1 do the 

work, and the second one has to double check the first one’s work to make sure 

everybody’s doing things properly…and keep us out of that process…so that’s the 

purpose of having 2 contractors doing the work…and to make sure everything is done 

according to ODOT guidelines…it keeps us out of that process…” 

“Is there any way we can combine a couple of projects, and give somebody a bigger 

project?” asked Mr. Thackery. 

Mr. Crabill responded, “This is really…it’s pretty specialized…” 

“We don’t have any other projects where we could use the same services?” Mr. Thackery 

asked. 



“No—not currently,” said Mr. Crabill. 

 

Citizen Comments 

Mr. Ben Vollrath, Customer Business Manager for DP&L, distributed advertisement 

handouts to Council and said: 

“DP&L has some really good efficiency rebate programs available for businesses…and 

some businesses in Urbana are being highlighted…I thought you would find that 

interesting.” 

He pointed to handout #1 – an advertisement regarding Weidmann Electrical – the 

company did some significant equipment improvements with variable frequency drives, 

and had a little over $90,000 in rebates from DP&L with an annual savings of over a 

quarter of a million dollars anticipated. 

Mr. Vollrath pointed to handout #2 highlighting American Pan, compressed air system 

improvements that will realize a DP&L rebate of $12,500 with an expected annual dollar 

savings of $11,076. 

Handout #3 highlighted ORBIS – the company performed ‘incredibly large 

improvements on their lighting,’ with a DP&L rebate of $44,123 / annual electricity 

savings of $132,545. 

 

Mr. Douglas Chamberlain (2499 County Rd. 91, Bellefontaine) addressed Council, and 

echoed remarks about the great job the City has done with snowplowing. 

Mr. Chamberlain did not sign in, but approached the podium after prompts by Council 

President Hess for ‘any other citizens who would like to speak.’ 

Mr. Chamberlain said:  

“I wanted to stop by just to introduce myself—I am the candidate for the 85
th

 House 

District…I bring 34 years of private sector experience, and ran my own law office for 35 

years…also served as a County Prosecutor, Village Solicitor to 3 different villages, 

served on the County Election Board and then I became a Family Court Judge…similar 

to the 2 Judges you have down here. I think that the combination of private sector and 

public sector makes me uniquely qualified for this job…I appreciate what’s happening 

what’s happening to local government (more than anybody else running for this job). 

As a Family Court Judge, we through the loss of local government funds, had to reduce 

our budget by 35%...had to go out looking for grant monies, in order to still provide the 

service to the community…so I understand how difficult it is for you to meet the needs of 

your community.” 

He referred to Amended House Bill 5, and said it will make a ‘significant impact’ on the 

City’s revenue. 

“I would appreciate your vote on May 6
th

,”Mr. Chamberlain concluded. “Thank you.” 

Council President Hess looked at Council, and said, “Sorry.” 

 

Ordinances and Resolutions 

Third Reading – 

RESOLUTION NO. 2409 – 

(Please see Minutes of December 17, 2013 for complete copy) 

Mr. Crabill reviewed Resolution No. 2409 before Council with no further questions/ 

comments from Council. 



Mr. Evans moved to place Resolution No. 2409 on the business floor for discussion and 

passage: Mr. Fields seconded. 

Roll call vote to approve: Mr. Hoffman, yes; Mr. Fields, yes; Mr. Evans, yes; Mrs. Smith, 

yes; Mr. Thackery, yes; Mr. Pena, yes  (6-0) 

ORDINANCE NO. 4413 – 

(Please see Minutes of December 17, 2013 for complete copy) 

Mr. Crabill (in the absence of Mr. Brad Bodenmiller) explained this Ordinance again. 

There were no further questions/ discussion. 

Mr. Thackery moved to place Ordinance No. 4413 on the business floor for discussion 

and passage; Mr. Hoffman seconded. 

Roll call vote to approve: Mr. Fields, yes; Mr. Evans, yes; Mrs. Smith, yes; Mr. 

Thackery, yes; Mr. Pena, yes; Mr. Hoffman, yes   (6-0) 

Second Reading 

RESOLUTION NO. 2411 – 14 

(Please see Minutes of January 14, 2014 for complete copy) 

Read and declared a Second Reading. 

Mr. Crabill noted this was discussed at the Work Session held the previous week, and 

explained the purpose of the Resolution briefly. 

Mr. Fields asked, “This is how we’ve handled this in the past—giving the Director of 

Administration authorization to do that?” 

“Yes,” Mr. Crabill responded. 

“…and this is something we have to do every year?” asked Mr. Fields. 

Mr. Crabill replied, “Yeah, it’s just a good thing to do with any grant application—to 

give somebody a blessing to send it in.” 

RESOLUTION NO. 2412 – 14 

(Please see Minutes of January 14, 2014 for complete copy) 

Read and declared a Second Reading. 

Mr. Crabill explained the Resolution again. 

No questions/comments from Council. 

RESOLUTION NO. 2413 – 14 

(Please see Minutes of January 14, 2014 for complete copy) 

Read and declared a Second Reading. 

Mr. Crabill explained this as the Muzzy Rd. Bridge Widening. 

No questions/comments from Council. 

ORDINANCE NO. 4416 – 14 

(Please see Minutes of January 14, 2014 for complete copy) 

Read and declared a Second Reading. 

Mr. Brugger provided a follow up to the last meeting again reviewing the details of the 

contract that allows for a one and a quarter percent raise (2014), and a one and a quarter 

percent raise (2015), and a $300. lump sum to the bargaining members of the F.O.P. 

Sergeants. 

No questions/comments from Council. 

ORDINANCE NO. 4411 – 

(Please see Minutes of January 14, 2014 for complete copy) 

Read and declared a Second Reading. 

Mr. Crabill again explained this Resolution. 



No questions/comments from Council. 

First Reading – 

ORDINANCE NO. 4417 – 14 

ORDINANCE OF COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF URBANA APPROVING AN 

ADDENDUM TO THE COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF URBANA, OHIO AND THE CITY OF URBANA PATROL OFFICERS 

AND THE FRATERNAL ORDER OF POLICE, OHIO LABOR COUNCIL, PASSED 

JUNE 11, 2013 (ORDINANCE NO. 4395) 

Read and declared a First Reading. 

Mr. Brugger said: 

“I sent an email out Monday morning…this came in late, and we weren’t able to get it in 

the packet for distribution with the rest of the material…this too was a reopener in the 

second and third year of the contract for the Patrol Officers and the F.O.P….and again, 

we were able to get both years completed this year, so we don’t have to go back to the 

table until 2015 (at the end of the contract). It’s a…I thought I had it in my folder, I had 

the wrong piece in there…I think it was a one and a quarter the first year, one and a half 

the second year, and a lump sum payable in 2014 to each bargaining member.” 

No questions/comments from Council. 

Miscellaneous Business 

Mr. Fields            - Nothing at this time 

Mr. Evans            - Said, “This has been a rough month for our employees (all the depart- 

                               ments), and I just want to say as a citizen…I appreciate your efforts.” 

                               He thanked the Sewer Dept. for work on a recent difficult dig 

                               Asked everyone to keep the Inskeep family in prayer, regarding the 

                               recent loss of Mr. David Inskeep 

Mrs. Smith           - Seconded Mr. Evans’ comments/ sentiments 

Mr. Thackery       - Seconded Mr. Evans’ comments/sentiments 

                               Said, “I’d also like to make a comment about the circle, The Round 

                               About…when did we put that in?” 

                               “2009,” said Mayor Bean. 

                               Mr. Thackery said he feels The Round About is working very well, 

                               the area is quieter, cleaner, and has less pollution, and as a business 

                               owner he appreciates having it. 

Mr. Pena              -  Expressed appreciation to all of the City workers for their work  

                                throughout the winter season 

Mr. Hoffman        - Agreed with Mr. Pena’s remarks; In particular mentioned the work of 

                                Water & Sewer Divisions 

                                Noted a visit to the WWTP; Said it is ‘coming along quite nicely’ 

                                “I appreciate the citizens trusting in us that we needed that, and it’s 

                                going to pay dividends in the future for economic development…as 

                                well as other savings along the way,” he stated. 

                                Commended the work of Gail Eldridge, The Urbana City Council  

                                Clerk, and wished her well in all of her future endeavors 

                                Moved to excuse Councilman Dwight Paul from this meeting; Mr. 

                                Fields seconded. All were in favor of excusing Mr. Paul. 

Police Chief Matt Lingrell – 



                                 Noted things are busy, but the Police Dept. is running smoothly 

Law Director Parcels – 

                                  Nothing at this time 

Mr. Crabill              - Said, “Doug (Hoffman) mentioned that the WWTP upgrade is going 

                                  great blazes, although they stopped construction here in the last  

                                  week with the temperatures that we’ve had…believe it or not, it’s 

                                  hard to pour concrete in this weather…I just wanted to give Council 

an update…when you approved the loan originally to fund the project…there’s a 

contingency built in…about $1.1mil…we did authorize the first change order for that 

project last week…$79,000…but the point to make clear on that is that basically there’s 

like 25 pages of construction line items for the project…actually that $79,000 had stuff 

that was taken off, and stuff that was added…and then that was $79,000. Just to give 

Council an update we have a $1.1mil contingency…for (4) invoices in, and so far we’re 

only at about $79,000 over on a seventeen plus million dollar project…” 

Mr. Colin Stein        - Nothing at this time 

                                  Council President Hess said, “I’ve noticed you’re using the smaller 

                                  trucks with the plows on them…they seem to be working pretty well 

                                  for you, I think…so…good idea.” 

Ms. Ward                - Nothing at this time 

Mr. Brugger            - Briefly mentioned the 2014 Engineering Review; Said a lot of  

                                  engineering activity will be going on (as a carryover from 2013, and 

                                  going up to 2017/2018); Said it will be a good year/busy year es- 

                                  pecially going into the second half 

                                  Commented regarding WWTP progress; Mentioned the detail and  

                                  documentation/tracking of Dugan & Meyer 

Mayor Bean            - Expressed appreciation to Colin Stein & crew, Robert Munch &  

                                  crew, and Chad Hall & crew for all of their hard work 

                                  “We’ve got a tough winter, and we’re all working together…and  

                                  that’s what this is all about!” he said. 

                                  Noted he took a tour of Rittal Corp., and quelled rumors saying,  

                                  “Doug Peterson, the president of Rittal has assured me that they’re 

                                  here for the duration…they have put millions of dollars into that  

                                  facility out there with equipment, and they have no place to go… 

                                  this is it! If ever taken a tour of Rittal—it is one fine piece of 

                                  machinery out there!” 

                                  He said he was at the meeting with members of the Dayton Devel- 

                                  opment Coalition, the CIC, and Mr. Steve Hess  / Mr. Dave 

                                  Faulkner (from the County Commission Office). 

Council President Hess – 

                                  Reminded new Council Members about the upcoming training for 

                                  Elected Officials 

                                  Reminded Council about the Ohio Ethics Commission Financial 

                                  Disclosure Statements that must be completed by the deadline 

                                  Announced Tax Forms are available to the public near the Finance 

                                  Dept. and are also on the website 

                                  Said, “I once again received calls from people who can’t get a hold 



                                   of some of you Council Members…so…we have to come up with a 

                                   better way of getting your names and numbers and emails out to  

                                   them…” 

                                   Reminded Council to complete the Council Information Sheet that 

                                   the Council Clerk distributed in early January 

                                   “The last thing I’d like to say is—thank you, Gail, for all of your  

                                   years of service—we appreciate it, you did a fine job—you had a  

                                   hard position to fill…so…thank you very much for everything  

                                   you’ve done,” Council President Hess said to the Clerk. 

                                   The Clerk responded, “Thank you—I’d just like to say it’s been an 

interesting ride with all of you folks…you know I’ve been here through 2 

Administrations…I’ve enjoyed working for all of you…the Administration, the 2 

Mayors, and the Council. I’ve just had a really good time. I’ve learned an incredible 

amount of information about government…and I really can’t thank you enough!” 

 

                                   Mr. Hoffman suggested a page in the local telephone book with the 

Council contact information.  

Mrs. Smith said the website is not accessible to citizens without computers, and 

telephone books do not carry cellphone numbers. She said one citizen suggested that 

Council should put their telephone numbers in front with their names at Council 

Meetings.  

Council President Hess said, “I think we’ll look into that…real quick.” 

“I’m fine with that…that would squash the whole…people couldn’t get a hold of us 

thing,” Mr. Hoffman replied. 

“I think that’s what we’ll end up doing—pretty quick, pretty quick,” Council President 

Hess said. 

 

Adjournment 

Mr. Fields moved to adjourn the UCC Regular Session Meeting at 8:15PM; Mrs. Smith 

seconded. All were in favor of adjournment. 

 

 

 

_______________________________                  _____________________________ 
Council Clerk                                                                        Council President 

 

 

January 28, 2014 Minutes.doc                        Urbana City Council                                     Page 11 of 11 

 

 

 


